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Document ID: 4569412
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Exhibit A: Affidavit of Katina Redmond  INF: Exhibit Bill Klapper
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7/2512022 Hearing Scheduled (Motion 08/12/2022 10:00 AM) Bill Klapper
7/28/2022 Attorney of Record Alexander L Edelman
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Server. Service fee of $0.00.
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8122022 Hearing Scheduled (09/09/2022 10:00 AM) Motion to Quash Service) Bill Klapper
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DEPUTY

IN THE TWENTY-NINTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT
DISTRICT COURT OF WYANDOTTE COUN[I‘ Y, KANSAS

AARON CIRCLE BEAR,
Plaintiff, |

Y.

. Case 1\110'. ZQ 22 (4\[ 385
Div. !ﬂ'_

COMES NOV}’ Plaintiff Aaron Circle Bear (hereinafter “ll’laintiﬂ”), by and through his

UNIFIED GOVERNMENT OF
WYANDOTTE COUNTY AND
KANSAS CITY, KANSAS

and

WYANDOTTE COUNTY DISTRICT
ATTORNEY’S OFFICE

Defendants.

et et St Nmat awt i et Sttt it oy v ot “went’ “wmt’ “art

Petition Pursuant to K.S.A. Chapter 60

PETITION FOR DAMAGES

undersigned counsel and for his Petition for Damages against Defendant Unified Governrent of
|

Wryandotte County and Kansas City, Kansas. (hereinafter “Defendant UG”), and Defendant

Wyandofte County Pistn'ct Attomney’s Office (hereinafter “Defendant DA”) (hereinafter,

collectively, “Defendants™) states and aileges as follows: |




]

| PARTIES

1. Plaintiffis & citizen of the United States, and at all

for Damages, resided in Wyandotte County, Kansas and was an “

times pertinent to this Petition

employee” within the meaning

of the Kansas Act Against Discrimination, KSA § 44-1002(b) ("KAAD"”) and Title VI of the Civil

Rights Act of 1964, 42 U.S.C.A. § 2000e et seg. (“Title VII™).

2. Defendant UG is a political subdivision organized

under the laws of the State of

Kansas. At all times pertinent to this Petition for Damages, Defendant UG was a “person” within

fhe meaning of the KA-AD and Title VIL
3. Defendant DA is a political subdivision organized

Kansas. At all-times pertinent to this Petition for Damages, Defend

the meaning of the KAAD and Title VIL

4, Defendants are Plaintiff’s joint employérs.
5. Defendants shared and co-determinéd the essen
Plaintiff’s employmeiit.

6. Both Defendants exercised significant control over

7. ' Both Defendants had the fight to terminate Plaintiff)

under the laws of the State of
ant DA was a “person” within -
tial ferms and conditions of

Plaintiff and other employees._

under certdin circumstances.

8.  Both Defendants promulgated work rules that govemned Plaintiff’s émployment.

9. Both Defendants promulgated assignments to Plaintiff.

10. Both Defendants set the conditions of employ:

compensation, benefits, and hours.

ment for Plaintiff, including

11.  Both Defendants controlled the day-to-day supervision of Plaintiff’s employmeént,

@

including his disciplin
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12.  Both Defendants controlled Plaintiff’s employment fecords, including payroll
records and insuranceirecords, |
13.  This is an employment discrimination and retaligtion lawsuit based upon and

arising under the KAAD and Title VIL.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

14.  All of the unlawful acts and practices set forth below were committed within

Wyandotte County, Kansas.

15.  Jurisdiction and venue are proper in the District of Kansas pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §
1331-and 28 U.S.C. § 1391.

EXHAUSTION OF ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEDUREs :

16.  Onor about September 15, 2021, Plainfiff timely filed a Charge of Discrimination -
against both Defendants with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (“EEOC”), which
were dudlly filed with the Kansas Human Rights Commiission (“KHRC?”) dgainst Defendant,
alleging discrimination due to race, sex, religion and nitional origin and retaliation. The Charges
of Discrimination are attached hereto as Exhibit A and Exhibit B and inc;arporated by reference as

if fully set forth herein.

i7.  On or about March 29, 2022, the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOJ”) issued to
Plaintiff a Notice of Right to Sue on each charge and this lawsuit was filed within 90 days of the
issuance of the DOJ’s Notice of Right to Sue. The Notices of Rightjto Sue for Plaintiff is attached
hereto as Exhibit C and Exhibit D and incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.

18.  The aforesaid Charge of Discrimination provided the KHRC, EEOC, and the DOJ
sufficient opportunity|to investigate the full scope of the controversy between the parties and,

accordingly, the sweep of this judicial complaint may be and is as broad as the scope of a KHRC;
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EEOC ot DOJ investigation, which could reasonably be expected to have.grown out of the Charges

- of Discrimination

19.  Plainti

f has exhausted all of his administrative 1

emedies and has satisfied all

private, administr'ativ% and judicial prerequisites to the institution of this action and it has been

filed within the requislite statute of limitations.

BACKGROUND

20.  Plaintiffis a Native American male.

21:  Plaintiffis a gay man and fails to conform to sex stereotypes.

22.  Plaintiff follows the religious practices of his ancestors, and his right to engage in

these practices is prote

“AIRFA™) 42 U.8.C. § 1996, as amended.

cted under the American Indian Religious Fre

edom Act of 1978 (hereinafier

23.  Plaintiff was employed at Wyandotte County Courthouse located at 710 N. 7th St.,

Kansas City, Kansas 6

24.  Plaintiff began his employment with Deferidants &
DA’s Community Integrity Unit ¢hereinafter, the “CIU”), which is ¢

District Attorney Mark Dupree, Sr. (hereinafter “D.A. Dupree”).

25, The C

enforcement personne,

26.  Plaintiff applied for the Chief Investigator position|

qualified due to his ap

27. Inor

a Caucasian male, with two (2) years of law enforcement experie;

1.

6101, where he began his employment in or

U investigates cases of wrongful convic

ound December 2020 or January 2021, Colin

arotnd January 21, 2021,
s an investigator in Defendant

yverseen by Wyandotte County

tion and misconduct of law

in the CIU, for which he was

proximately eleven (11) years of experience in law enforcement.

Brown (hereinafier “Brown”),

nce, and who had been a part-




time investigator for the CIU was hired as Chief Investigator instedd of Pldintiff and was Plaintiff’s

' SUPErvisor.
28,

épnior Assist District
a “sit down”:meeting:

29,

politics and the use of profanity, and they wanted to know if dis

Timits to Plaintiffs. Plaintiff'did not object to such discussions.

30..

political discussions and the use of profanity that were at issue in {

31.

said things that were

32,

PlaintifP’s emiployment with Defendants.

33.

Siao_rtly after Plaintiff’s employment with the CIT
Attorney James Antwon Floyd (her¢inafter
with them, saying they wanted to know whe

Brown and Floyd told Plaintiff there were subjects!

extremely discriminatory in nature.

. Within a week of this “sit down,” it became épparel

" Plaintiff heard many highly inappropriate convers

In particular, Brown often expressed deeply offer

J began, Brown and the CIU’s

‘Floyd”) asked Plaintiff to have

re Plaintiff “éto_od.“

that were talked about, such as

scussing those subjects was off

1t to Plaintiff that it was not just
the CITU,

ations in which his coworkers

The CIU’s cultute was toxic, discﬁminatofy, afid hostile for the entirety of

sive and discriminatory views.

régarding miftorities, people with intellectually and/or physically disabilities, members of the gay

and lesbian community, transgender people, and people receivi:

benefits.

34. Floyd
Muslims.

35. | Brown

went. so far as to say members of some of

ng welfare and unemployment

also frequently expressed deeply offensive and discriminatory views about

these groups need to be killed,

and further said the only problem would be where “to put all the ovens at to burn the bodies.”
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36: - -Furthér, Brown and Floyd frequently dispataged Native Americans during

conversations with Plaintiff;

37.  Plainfiff found these comments to be particularly disturbing, not only because heis

a member of some ofj the groups Brown was referring to, but also

because the very people Brown

said deserved to die, jcollectively, made up a majority of the population the CIU was created to

. Serve,

38.  Brown also referred to African Americans as “shit Bags” who did “shit bag things.”

39.  Additionally, shortly after Plaintiff began his

Plaintiff asked Defendants’ employee Shanell Phoenix-Daniel

ployment with Defendants,

to find out what policies or

processes Plaintiff needed to foflow in order to bum sage, or “smudge” in his office.

40. = Smudging is a spiritual pracﬁce that is part of Plaintiff’s religion and is used to

6lea;1$e spaces and individuals.

41. Phoenix-Daniels asked what Plaintiff was burhing and inquited if it was like

buining incense.

42.  Plaintiff invited Phoenix-Daniels into his office-and showed her his shell and sage-

and explained the process.

43. A few|days later, Phoenix-Daniels informed Plaintiff that he was given the “OK”

to smudge his office T;thout any guidelines to follow.

44,  Plainti

CIU common area and continued to run them while also shutting

in an effort to be as respectful as possible to his fellow employees

purchased two (2) air purifiers (one (1) fdr his office and one (1) for the

his office door while smudging

45, However, when Plaintiff did smudge, Plaintiff} was harassed by his fellow

employees, including but not limited to assertions that Plaintiff should be drug-tested because ~o_'f




the sage’s aromia; a challenge to an “incense war” by Brown; dnd:

-statement by Brown and Floyd

to other DA 'employégs that Plaintiff was smoking weed (marijuana) due to the sage’s aroma.

46.  Plaintiff felt demeaned and harassed for practicing his religion because of the

harassment he experienced due to his smudging.

47.  Plaintiff also endured discrimination based on his sexual orientation and not

conforming to sex stereotypes.

48.  Floyd

having in regard to gt

overheard a telephone conversation and was

tting a rather expensive prescription covereq

49,  Floyd

i’laix;_ﬁff if the medication was for AIDS.

50, Floyd
have sexual relations
51. Browr

remarks about gay people — gay men and transgender pebpie in p:IlicuIér.

who Plaintiff believes was aware of Plain

with monkeys get AIDS.

and Defendant UG employee David Kelly

aware of problems Plaintiff was
| by his insurance:

tiff’s sexual orientation, asked

had previously expressed his belief that only homosexuals and people who

also frequently made negative

52.  Plaintiff was chided for wearing certain clothing
manicured.
53. ' Plainti

d keeping his fingernails well-

ff displayed several commemorative coins ir his office, some of which have

a symbols or themes associated with the LGBT community (for example, some are from other law

enforcement agencies and have a gay pride symbol or message on

54, Brown

out the ones that are i

mportant to me.”’ Plaintiff replied, “[tThey ar

55.  Brown and Floyd consistently harassed Plaintiff a

them).

, while looking at Plaintiff’s displayed coins|made the comment, “T only put

> all important to me.”

nd stated that he was being too

“particular” regarding finding a place to live and blamed this on Plaintiff’s being Native American.




56.  Brown

and had “high class welfare” from the federal government.

|

and Floyd said Plaintiff was being “posh” because he’s Native American

-57.  Speaking about Plaintiff as if he were not even in the room, Brown said, “[t]he

governtent just feeds him money, and so, he’s established this hiT;h standard of living. He comes

here to Wyandotte County, and boom (he’s) at the bottom of the barrel now.”

58, Brown
fucking born.”
59. Floyd

“noncommittal.”

further said Plaintiff gets a check “from the government because (he) was

told Plaintiff he would “treat (him) like the plants” because Plaintiff was

60.  Floyd would also threaten Plaintiff that Floyd would tell D.A. Dupree that Plaintiff

was not doing his job

so D.A. Dupree would fire Plaintiff,

61.  Plaintiff believes Floyd made all these comments and belittled him about finding

an apartment because

religion and race.

Plaintiff does not conform to gender stereotypes and because of Plaintiffs

62.  On several occasions during the Spring of 2021, Plaintiff shared his concérns with

four (4) of Defendant
Hill, and Darrion Wa
about his coworkers’
help.

63.  These

to Defendant UG’s H

t UG’s assistant district attorneys, Candice Alcaraz, Njeri Mwangi, Tonda
{ker, about the discrimination he was experiencing and about his concerns

negatively biased attitude toward the very people the CIU was supposed to

assistant district attorneys advised Plaintiff that he should take his concerns

uman Resources Department.




64.  Plaintiff was afraid to follow this advice because,|even if he were able to enter a

complaint anonymously, his CIU coworkers would easily figure|out that Plaintiff had made the

complaint because the CIU consisted of only four (4) employees.

65.  Plaintiff was concerned about retaliation and the p ssibility of increased hostility.

66.  Plaintiff believed there were also three (3) other assistant district attomeys, Kayla

(Last Name U"nknow-l), Garrett Relph, and Daniel Overmeier who were aware of the harassment

and discrimination as

Plaintiff witnessed them participating in some of the conversations.

67.  Plaintiff documented his concerns while he worked up the courage to report his

concerns to Defendant UG’s Human Resources Department.

68. Onor

office.

around May 11, 2021, Plaintiff was called fto a meeting at D.A. Dupree’s

69. - Upon Plaintiff’s arrival at the Wyandotte County JJourthouse, Plaintiff attempted

to gain entry into the parking garage, as he had always done, however, his badge no longer

functioned. Plaintiff entered the facility through the main doors and proceeded through security.

70.  While

'waiting outside D.A. Dupree’s office, Plaintiff went to see an assistant

district attorney to aslk what was going on; this assistant district| attorney advised Plaintiff that

Floyd and Brown were eating their lunch in the “war room,” a room just down the hall, which

struck Plaintiff as odd because, in Plaintiff’s experience, eating lunch in that room had not been

their uswal practice.
71.  As the

Plaintiff how he was ¢

meeting between D.A. Dupree and Plaintiff began, D.A. Dupree asked

joing,




72. In '1 onse, Plaintiff tried to raise his concerns abo
discrimination he had experienced, but, in fewer than fift.eeﬁ (15)
cut-Pldi-nﬁﬂ’ short, saying, “[slo, let ine say this: [tJoday’s going 10

73.

D.A. Dupree told Plaintiff that from what he had b

of-“‘compatibility” inthe CIU.
74. D.A.I
compatibility)} is.”

75.  As Plaintiff began to raise his concerns, D:A. Dup

Plaintiff had not previously brought Plaintiff’s concerns to him.
76.  Plaintiff explained that he was concerned about m
coworkers and himself, and further that Plaintiff had decided he 1
discrimination complaint to Deputy Chief District Attorney Da
Plaintiff understood to be thé chaint of command.
77.  Atthat point, Plaintiff began to tell D.A. Dupree ab
Plaintiff had endured!
78. ) As soon as Plaintiff said, “my cuiture, my religion
cut Plaintiff short and
on the back end, but, as of this meeting, you’re done in this office]
79.  Plaintiff said he would email D.A. Dupree but,
CONCerns.
80.  Once again, D.A. Dupree cut Plaintiff short, saying t
at this point,” and fur

the unit’s progress towards justice.

-10~

Dupree told Plaintiff he was “trying to figure

ther indicated that Plaintiff’s continued empl

ut the culture of the CIU and the

seconds, D.A. Dupree abruptly
be your last day in this office,”
een “hearing,” there was a lack
out on whose part (the lack of
ree-made a point of saying that
1king things worse between his
ieeded to take his concems and
mon Mitchell, following what

out the religious discrimination

" D.A. Dupree again abruptly

told Plaintiff to send him an email, D.A. Dupree stated, “I can deal with that

£

igain, fried to voice Plaintiffs

the meeting was “officially over

oyment in the CIU would slow




|
81.
82,  Prior to terminating him, D.A. Dupree never once
Dupree had “heard” about the lack of “compatibility” in the CIU; ;

about the alleged “incompatibility.”

83.  Upon information and belief, the circumstances in

clear violation of Defendants’ policies regarding investigati
terminating employees.

| 84.  Upon information and belief, D.A. Dupree decide
of his race, religion
Plaintiff’s coworkers/made about him due to these things,

85.  Upon information and belief, Floyd and Brown hs

day he was terminated because of their involvement with his term;
86.  Following Plaintifs termination, he made re;

Resources Department about the discrimination and harassment

discriminatory comments made against other protected individuals.

87.  Despite these reports to Human Resources, Plais
position.
88.  During Plaintiff’s meeting with Human Resource

Plaintiff was told an investigation would be conducted.

89. A few days following that meeting, Plaintiff rec
informing him that tt
itself, which caused Plaintiff great concem that it would be dif

investigation to take

-11-

¢ District Attorney’s Office would be inve:

lace when the office Plaintiff complained ab

Plaintiff’s termination meeting lasted less than ﬁveL (5) minutes.

asked Plaintiff about what D:A.

nor did anyone else ask Plaintiff

volved in his termination are a

ng complaints and regarding

d to terminate Plaintiff because

sex, not conforming to gender stereotypes and because of complaints

id lunch in the “war room” the
ination.

ports to Defendants’ Human
he had endured as well as the

.

atiff was not reinstated to his

s Manager Shakeva Christian,

cived an email from Christian
stigating the complaint against
ficult for a fair and objective

out was investigating itself.
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90. Défendants discriminated against Plaintiff; allowed Defendants’ employees to

discriminate;against

national origin and| Defendants retaliated against Plaintiff because of his -complaints of

discrimination.

and harass Plaintiff, and terminated him‘ becanse of his race; sex, religion and

COUNTI

RACE/NATIONAL ORIGIN DISCRIMINATION IN VIOLATION OF TITLE VII

91.  Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference as if fully stated herein the allegations

contained in the foregoing paragraphs.
92.  Defendant UG is an employer under Title VII,
93. ' Defendant DA is an employer under Title VIL

94,  Plaintiff is Native American.

95.  Plaintiff is a qualified individual as defined by Title VII, due to his race/national

96. Defendants unlawfully and intentionally discriminated against Plaintiff based on

his race/national origin and acted in bad faith by interfering with, recklessly disregarding, and

denying his legal rights when they terminated Plaintiff’s employmient.

97.  Defendants’ actions against Plaintiff'were outragepus because Defendants had an

evil motive and/or reckless indifference to the rights of others.

98.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ actions and/or omissions, Plaintiff

has been deprived of

income, as well as other monetary and non-monetary benefits.

99.  As a further direct and proximate resuit of Defendants’ actions and/or omissions,

Plaintiff has suffered

pain, and related compensatory damages.

2 loss of self-esteem, humiliation, emotional distress and mentdl anguish and

«12 -




100. By failing to take prompt and effective remedial action, Defendants in effect

cqndpned, ratified and/or authorized the discrimination against Plaintiff.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against the DLfendants, jointly and severally,

for all damages available under law including, but not limited to: Hack pay, lost benefits, and front

pay, for all damages stated herein, for actual, compensatory, and

which is fair and reasonable, a finding that he is the prevailing

special damages in an amount

party in this matter, all costs,

expenses, expert witness fees and attorneys’ fees incurred herein, for elimination of his detrimental

job record, and fbr equitable relief, for pre and post judgment inferest at the highest lawful rate,

and for-such othier relief as the Conrt deems just and proper. Morgover, Plaintiff asserts that he s

entitled to recover yu;n‘ﬁve damages and to the extent that KSA
count, seeks thern; to the extent it does apply, Plaintiff will later
them.

COUNT I
SEX DISCRIMINATION IN VIOLATION O

|

101.  Plaintiff hereby incorporates by refereance as if ful

contained in the foregoing para graphs

102; ' Defendant is an employer under the Title VIIL.

60-3703 does not apply o this

amend to include a request for

F TITLE VII

ly stated herein the allegations

103. Plaintiff is a gay male and does not conform to gender stereotypes.

104, Plaintiff is a qualified individual as defined by Title VII due to his sex.

105. DefemLants unlawfully and intentionally discrimin
his sex and acted in bad faith by interfering with, recklessly disre

rights when they terminated Plaintiff’s employiment.

ated against Plaintiff based on

-parding, and denying his legal

106. Defendants’ actions against Plaintiff were outrageous because Defendants had an

evil motive and/or reckless indifference to the rights of others.

-13-
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107.  As a direct and proximate result of Defendants’ actions. and/or omissions, Plaintiff

has been deprived of income, including wages and benefits as
monetary benéfits.
108.

Plaintiff has suffered a loss of s¢lf-esteem, humiliation, emotional

pain, and related compensatory damages.

i
109. By failing to take prompt and effective remedial

ell as other monetary and non-

As further direct and proximate result of Defendants’ actions and/or omissions,

distress and mental anguish and

action, Defendants, in effect,

cohdéned, ratified and/or authorized the discrimination against Plaintiff.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment agair

' sév_cra_lly, for all damages available under law including, but not lir
and front pay, for all damages stated herein, for actual, compensa
amount which is fair|and reasonable, a finding that he is the pre
costs, expenses, expert witness fees and aftorneys’ fees incirreg

detfimental job recor

st the Defendants, jointl_y andl
nz'tec_l to: ba_ck-pqy, lost benefits,
ory, and special damages in an
vailing party in this matter, all

| Kerein, for elimination of his

d, and for equitable relief, for pre and post judgment interest at the highest

lawful rate, and for such other relief as the Court deems just and proper, Moreover, Plaintiff asserts

that he is entjtled to recover punitive damages and to the exterit th

to this count, seeks them; to the extent it does apply, Plaintiff will

for them.,
COUNT II1
RELIGIOUS DIS CRIMINATION IN VIOLATIO
110. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations c¢
stated paragraphs as tEi)ugh fally set forth herein,
111. Plaintiff follows the religious practices of his ance

these practices is protected under AIRFA.

-14-

at KSA 60-3703 does not apply

later amend to include a request

N OF TITLE VII

mtained in thé dbove and below

stors, and his right to engage in
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112. Plainti

ff is a qualified individual under Title VI

“traditional religious and spiritual practices.

113.

his religion 'and spi

114. Defenc

Defendants unlawfully and intentionally discrimin

ritual practices and acted in bad faith

evil motive and/or reckless indifference to the rights of others.

115. Asad
hag been depnved of|
} méneta:_y benefits.

116. As fur
Plaintiff has suffered
pain, and related com

117. By fai

a loss of self-esteem, humiliation, emotional
pensatory damages.

ling to take prompt and effective remedial

irect and proximate result of Defendants’ act:

I due to his adherence to his

ated against Plaintiff based on

interfering with, recklessly

b
disregarding, and denying his legal rights when they terminated PJ:intifPs-employment.

jants® actions against Plaintiff were. outragémus because Defendants had an

ions and/or omissions, Plaintiff

income, including wages and benefits as well as other monetary and non-

ther direct and proximate result of Defendants’ actions and/or omissions,

istress and mental anguish and

action, Defendants, in effect,

condoned, ratified and/or authorized the discrimination against Plaintiff.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against the De

for all damages-availaLle under law including, but not limited to: b

pay, for dll damages

stated herein, for actual, compensatory, and

which is fair and reasonable, a finding that he is the prevailing

expenses, expert witn
job record, and for eq
and for such other rel

entitled to recover pu

witable relief, for pre and post judgment int
ief as the Court deems just and proper. More

nitive damages and to the extent that KSA

-15-

fendants, jointly and severally,
ack pay, lost benefits, and front
special damages in an amount

party in this mattér, all costs,

oss fees and attorneys® fees incurred herein, for elimination of his detrimental

erest at the highest lawful rate,
over, Plaintiff asserts that he is

60-3703 does not apply to- this




count, seeks them; tq

them.

118.

contained in the foregoing paragraphs.

119.
120.
121.
122.
religion and Defenda:
123.  Plainti
124, Plainti
125.
126.  Plainti
ADPAs.
127.
termination meeting.
128.
department.
129.
discrimination.
Plainti

i30.

discrimination.

Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference as if fiil

Plaintiff is Native American.

Plaintiff is a qualified individual as defined by Title

1ts’ awareness of his race, sex, and religion &

ff is a member of a protected class because ¢

ff is a member of a protected class because o

Plaintiff opposed discrimination when he complain

the extent it does apply, Plaintiff will later

COUNT 1V

amend to include a request for

RETALIATION IN VIOLATION OF TITLE VII

Plaintiff is a member of a protected class because d

ff opposed the discrimination against him W

Plaintiff opposed discrimination when he complaij

Plaintiff engaged in protected activity under Tit

ff engaged in protected activity under Title:

-16 -

ly stated herein the allegations

Plaintiff is a gay male and does not ¢onform to gender steréotypes.

Plaintiff practices the religion and spiritual practices of his ancestors.

VII due to his race, his sex, his .

t all times relevant herein.

i his race.
f his sex.

f his religion.

then he complained of it to the

ned of it to DiA. Dupree at his

ed of it to Defendant UG’s H.R.

le VIl when he opposed race

VII when he opposed religions




131. Defendants took adverse employment action againg

protected -activity, in] violation of Title VII, including terminatis
failing to reliire Plainiff following his termination,

132.  As adjrect and proximate resuit of Defendants” act

hasg been deprived of}income, including wages and benefits as w
monetary be}:neﬁts.

133.; As further direct and proximate result of Defend:

Plaintiff has!suffered a loss of self-esteem, humiliation, emotional
pain, and rel{ated compensatory damages.
134. By‘ failing to take-prompt and effective remedial

condoned, ral.ﬁﬁed and/or authorized the discrimination against Pl

st Plaintiff in retaliation for this

g Pi_aintiff’s employment and

ions and/or omissions, Plaintiff

ell as other monetary and non-

nts’ actions and/or omissions,

Histress and mental anguish and

action, Defendants, in effect;

jintiff.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against the Defendants, jointly and severally,

for all damages available under law including, but not limited to: back pay, lost benefits, and front

pay; for all damages stated herein, for actual, compensatory, ‘and

|
|

which is fair and reasonable, a finding that he is the prevailing

special damages in an amoniit

party in this matter, all costs, -

. ' 1 .
expenses, expert witness fees and attorneys® fees incurred herein, for elimination of his detrimental

:iob-rccért_i, énd for equitable relief, for pre and post judgment int
and for such: other relief as the Court deems just and proper. Morg
entitled to recover punitive damages and to the extent that KSA
count, seeks them; to, the extent it does apply, Plaintiff will later

them,

-17-

erest at the highest lawful rate,
over, Plaintiff asserts that he is
60-3703 does not apply to this

amend to include a request for




135.. Plainti

. ‘contained in'the foregoing paragraphs.

136. Defendant UG is an employer under the KAAD.
137. Defendant DA is an employer under the KAAD.
138.. Plaintiff is Native American.

139.! Plaintiffis a qualified individual as defined by the

RACE

_y COUNTY
DISCRIMINATION IN VIOLATIO

hereby incorporates by reference as if ful

'OF KAAD

y stated herein the allegations

TAAD, due to His race.

140. Defendants unlawfully and intentionally discrimin

dted against Plaintiff based on

 his race and'acted in bad faith by interfering with, recklessly disregqrding, and denying his legal

rights when they terminated Plaintiff’s employment.

141.. Defendants’ actions against Plaintiff were outrageous because Defendants had an

evil motive and/or re(ildess indifference to the rights of others.

142., Asa de:ct and proximate result of Defendants”’ act,

has been deprived of income, as well as other monetary and non-it

143.1 As a further direct and proximate result. of Defend

Plaintiff has suffered a loss of self-esteem, humiliation, emotional ¢

pain, and related compensatory damages.

ions and/or omissions, Plaintiff
\onetary benefits.
ants’ actions and/or omissions,

Jistress and mental anguish and

144. By failing to take prompt and effective remedial action, Defendants in effect

or authorized the discrimination against Pla

intiff.

condoned, ratified ::].V
WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays for judgment against the Defendants, jointly and severally,

- for all damages availa

le under law including, but not limited to: b

pay, for all damages stated herein, for actual, compensatory, and

which is falf and reasonable, a finding that he is the prevailing

-18~

ack pay, lost benefits, and front
special damages in an amount

party in this matter, all. cost:;*.,




job record, and for

and for such other rel

entitled to r_\fao‘over punitive damages and to the extent that KSA

count, seeks them; to

them.

the extent it does apply, Plaintiff will later

COUNT VI

SEX DISCRIMINATION IN VIOLATION

145,

Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference as if ful

contained. inithe foregoing paragraphs

146. Bachl
147. Plainti
148. Plainti
149.

defendants is an employer under the KAAD,

ffis a gay male and does not conform to gen|
ff is a qualified individual as defined by the |

Defendants unfawfully and intentionally discrimin

ief as the Court deems just and proper. Morg

expenses, expert Wit:lessfees and attorneys’ fees incurred herein, for elimination of his detrimental
. + .

uitable relief, for pre and post judgment interest at the highest lawful rate;

over, Plaintiff asserts that he is
60-3703 does not apply to this

amend to include a request for

OF KAAD

ly stated herein the allegations

er stereotypes.
CAAD due to his sex.

ated against Plaintiff based on

his sex and acted in bad faith by interfering with, recklessly disregarding, and denying his legal

righﬁs when they terminated Plaintiff’s employment.

150" Defendants’ actions against Plaintiff were outrage

evil motive and/or rec
151. Asad

has been del;zrived of

monetary bepcﬁts.
152.. As fuy

Plaintiff haslsuffered

i

Kless indifference to the rights of others.

irect and proximate result of Defendants” act

income, including wages and benefits as w

1 loss of self-esteem, humiliation, emotional

pain, and lated compensatory damages.

1
|
t
L]
1
'

-16-

sus because Defendants had an

fons and/or omissions, Plaintiff

ell as other monetary and non-

ther direct and proximate result of Defendants’ actions and/or omissions,

istress and mental anguish and




153.1 By fai

condoned, ratified an

WHEREFORE

for all damages availdble under law including, but not limited to: b

pay, for all damages

which is fair and rea

ling fo take prompt and effective remedial
d/or authorized the discrimination against Pla

, Plaintiff prays for judgment against the Dg

stated herein, for actual, compensatory, and

sonable, a finding that he is the prevailing

action, Defendants, in effe'c.:t-,
intiff,

fendants, jointly and severally,
ack pay, lost benefits, and front
special damages in an amount

party in this matter, all costs,

expenses, expert witness fees and attorneys’ fees incurred herein, for elimination of his detrimental

job record, eind for equitable relief, for pre and post judgment int

i

and for such other relief as the Court deems just and proper. More

- __entit'l.ed to 'rtfacover pu

count, seeks, them; to

nitive damages and to the extent that KSA.

the extent it does apply, Plaintiff will later

. them. '
, COUNT VII
. RELIGIOUS DISCRIMINATION IN VIOLAT]
154, Plaintiff incorporates by reference the dlegations cC
stated-paragxi'aphs' as though fully set forth herein.
155, Plainti
these practi‘c%es is protected under ATRFA.
156. Plaintiff is a qualified individual under the KAA

traditional religious and spiritual practices.

157. Defen

his religion} and spiritual practices and acted in bad faith b

disregarding, and dem

|
|

erest at the highest lawful rate,
over, Plaintiff asserts that he is
(0-3703 does not apply to this

amend to include a request for

ON OF KAAD

ntained in the above and below

ft follows the religious practices of his ancestors, and his right to engage in

D due to his adberence to his

-20 -

ing his legal rights when they terminated PI

ants unlawfully and intentionally discriminEted against Plaintiff based on

interfering with, recklessly

aintiff’s employment.




158,
évil motive and/or rec
156. Asad

has been deprived of
mongtary benefits,

160. As fur

Plaintiff has suffered
pain, and related com

161.. By fa

cqz;d_ongd, rdtified and/or authorized the discrimination against Pla

WHEBEFOR_E
|

for all damages availg
pay, for all. (:lamag“e"s‘

which is fair and rea

irect and proximate result of Defendants’ act

kless indifference to the rights of others.
income, including wages and benefits as w
ther direct and proximate result of Defendg
1 loss of self-esteern, humiliation, emotional (
pensatory damages.

ling to take prompt and effective remedial

, Plaintiff prays for judgment against the De

stated Herein, for actual, compensatory, arid

sonable, a finding that he is the prevailing

Defendants’ actions against Plaintiff were outrageous because Defendants had an

fons and/or omissions, Plaintiff

ell as othér monetary and non-

nts’ actions and/or omissions,

istress arid mental angunish and

action, Defendants, in effect,
intiff.

fendants, jointly and severally,

ble under law including, but not limited to: back pay, lost benefits, and front -

special damages in an amount

party in this matter, all costs,

expenses, expert witness fees and attorneys® fees incurred herein, fgr elimination of his detrimental
]

job record, arnd for eq

uitable relief, for pre and post judgment int

and for such other reljef as the Court deems just and proper. More

|

[F1e}3

entitled to recover p

count, seeks;them; to

tive damages and to the extent that KSA

the extent it does apply, Plaintiff will later

erest at the highest lawful rate,
over, Plaintiff asserts that he is
50-3703 does not apply to this

amend to include a request for

them.
COUNT VIII
RETALIATION IN VIOLATION OF
| 162.; Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference as if ful
oing paragraphs.

- |
contained in}'the foreg
E

221

y stated herein the allegations




163.
e
- 164 j
165.--:
166, ! Plainti

religion and Defendat

167.

168. ', Plaintiff is a member of a protected class because o
169. Plainti

-170." Plainti

r
ADAs. '

171" Plain
termination meeting.

172.  Plainti
dbpartrne_nt.'

173.
discriminaﬁég.

174..
discriminatitl}n.

175." Defen

protected activity, in

failing to rehire Plain

Plaintiff is Native American.
Plaintiff is a gay male and does not conform to gen

Plaintiff practices the religion and spiritual practice

Plainti

Plaintiff engaged in protected activity under Tit

Plaintiff engaged in protected activity under Title

ff is a qualified individual as definied by Title
nts” awareness of his race, sex, and religion a

ff is a member of a protected class because d

ff is a member of a protected class because ¢

ff opposed the discrimination against him w

ff opposed discrimination when he complair

ff opposed discrimination when he coraplain

{ants took adverse employment action agains
violation of Title VII, including terminatis

HET following his termination.

-22 -

der stereotypes.

s of his asicestors.

VIIduJe to his race, his sex, his
t all times relevant herein.

fhis race.

f his sex.

f his religion.

'hen he complained of it tt; the
ned of it to' D.A. Dupree at his
ed of it to Défendant UG’s H.R.
le VII when he opposed ra?e
V1l when he opposed religious

st Plaintiff in retaliation for this

ng Plaintiff’s employment and




176., Asad

i

irect and proximate resulf of Defendants’ act

has been dei:rived oflincome, including wages and benefits as w
1 ‘

monetary benefits.
177.. As further direct and proximate result of Defend:

Plaintiff has:suffered a loss of self-esteem, humiliation, emotional

pain, and refated compensatory damages.

178-} By failing to take prompt and effective remedial

condoned, fa:ttiﬁed and/or authorized the discrimination against P14

' WHI%EREFQ
for all damaé&s av

t

pay, for all damages rlated herein, for actual, compensatory, and

which is fair and reasonable, a finding that he is the prevailing
‘ |
- |
éxpenses, expert wi
joB_r_eoord, and for ealuitable relief, for pre and post judgment inti

I
and for such; other rel

Coo
entitled to recover punitive damages and to the extent that KSA
v

count, seeks:: them; tol the extent it does apply, Plaintiff will ldter

them.

Demand for Jurv Trial

Plaintiff demands a trial by jury pursuant to Federal Rule g

matters set forth in this Petition or arising therefrom, and, pursuan

h trial be held in Kansas City, Kansas.

requests sucl

-23.

tef as the Court deems just and proper. More

ions and/or omissions, Plaintiff

ell as other monetary and non-

ants’ actions and/or omissions,

distress and mental anguish and

action, Defendants, in effect,

jintiff.

, Plaintiff prays for judgment against the Defendants, jointly and severally,

ai]:Iﬂe under law including, but not limited to: back pay, lost benefits, and front
special damages in an amount

party in this matter, all costs,

tness fees and attornieys’ fees incurred herein, for elimination of Liis detrimeéntal

brest at the highest lawful rate,
over, Plaintiff asserts that he is
60-3703 does not apply to this

amend to include a request for

f Civil Procedure 38(b) on all

t to-D, Kan. Rule 40.2(a),




Dated: I"ane; 24, 2022

By: 5/ Sarah C. Liesen -
Sarah C. Liesen KS #26988
208 W. Linwood Blvd,
Kansas City; Missouri 64111
Tel: {816) 301-4056
Fax: (816) 463-8449
sliesen@elmlawke.com
ATTORNEY FOR PLAINTIFF

-24 .




EXHIBIT A

eocFamitrion |
menl

Tﬂs[mlualfadﬂdh

CHARGE OF DISCRIMINATION

Smamentsnd diher lformation befare campleting this forn.

tlig Privacy Astal 1874, See enclosed Privacy Adl

C.harga i’-"r,est;nted To:
[X] repa Reovd EEOC 09/45/2021

[x] =

Agsney(les) Charge Nogs):

563-2021-02790
EQC

KANSAS HUMAN RIGHTS COMM!SSIbN ) and. EEOC
) . ] ' State nrlacamyuncy ey .
Narfs (inclcate Mr., Ms., Mz} Homa Phone (fch, A Codo] ‘Pate of Bitth
Aaron Circlé Bear qlo Edelman, Liesen & Myers, LLP. (816) 3014056

Sioet Addreas. ]
208 W. Linwbod Elvd.

4

CI‘N State Bnd ZUP Coda

Kanrsas City, Missouri 64114

‘Namﬁd Is the Emptoyer. Laber Organization, Emplaymenl Agenty, Apprenticeshlp Comnﬂuee. or State of
. Dismnunatod Agalns! Me ar Omers (lfmore rhan rwo, fist underPARTJCULARS below. )

FLocal Govemment Ageficy That | Balléve -

N'ama' : '[

_Un!ﬂed Govemment of

Wyandotte Cuunty and Kansas. City, KS

o, Empigyeo, flembers, |

ron No: {lﬁé!;ydq ;;zaﬁ'cgq;;j‘ .
(913) 573-6311.

2000+

sasas ] et

701 N. 7th Sllreet

Tlfy, Eiaty and 2P Coda

Kansas City, KS 66101

DTSCR!MIMATION BASE‘O ON (Cher;

EI RACE ID COLCR
Iz] aemwm

I ’ I AGE D DISABILITY
D OTHER {Specify)

k dppropiisie boxjes))

IZ] SEX E RELIGION IE NATIONAL ORIGIN

i:l GENETIC INFORMATION

DATE(S) DlSCF!IMlNATiON TOOK PLACE
Earﬂaﬂ {atest

January 21, 2021

E CONTINUYING ACTION

mE.Pmncumn's'?l'A'ﬁ“E"u'?au@ﬁan
Additional Rgr:spondent:
573-2851.

I, Aiiiro‘r; Circle

Wyandotte County and
!

above. Respofxdents are émployers within Title VI1 of the Civil Rights Act of

vnu)' f

!

The slpeciﬁc facts that give rise to my claims of race, sex, religion an

as follows: |

! paperis needad, srm;hl extra shoel(s)):

Wyandotte County District Attorney’s Office, 710

Bear, bring this Charge of Discrimination against

Kansas City, Karisas, (UG) and Wyandotte County [

7th St, Kansas City, K8 66101, (913)

Respondent Unified Government of
District Attorney’s Office (DA) listed
964 (42 U.5.GC. § 2000¢ ef seq (“Title

{ national origin discrimination are
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i
1 am a Native
ancestors, dnd my righ

Act of 1978 (AIRFA)

American-male. ! am also a gay man, Further, I K
t to engage in these practices is protected under the 4

42 11.5.C, § 1996, asamended,

I started worki

Communit)i Integrity Bnit (CIU), whichi is overseen by Wyandotte County

g for Respondents on or about January 21, 2021,

EXHIBIT A

ollow the religions practicés of my

\merican Indian Religious Freedom

as an investigator in Respondént’s

District Attorney Mark Dupree, Sr.

This dep,art%nent investigates cases of wiongful conviction and law enforcement misconduct. I applied for the

Chief In,ves:lig_ajtor po
law enforée'?nent. Coli
Chief Imfjt:s‘_»%igaibr and

Shostly after
Attérney Jé:incs Antwo
warited to krilow where

if* discussing those su
+

|
profanity, wlhich Ididr

-Alm‘f:s_t itnmedi
and use of profanity t.

which my nl:bwbrker's

discriminatolry, and hostile for the entirety of my employment with Respond

In paiticular, Investigator Brown often expressed deeply offensive 4

minorities, §

transgender Feo‘ple, an

Floyd also f:k'gquently g

went so far a:s to say me

be where “to put all the

sition, for which 1 was qualified due to my approxi

i

ntellectually and/or physically handicapped people, members ¢

was my supervisor.

n Playd, asked me to have a “sit down” meeting with

jects was off limits to me, They offered as exam
ot object to.
rtely,- within a week, it became apparent to me that it

at were at issue in the department, I heard many hi

said things thet were very discriminatory in natu

people receiving welfare and unemployment, Assistd

xpressed deeply. offensive and discriminatory views

ovens at to burn the bodies.” Further, Brown and [

n}:tely eleven years of experience in

Brown, a Caucasian male, with two years of law enforcement experience was the CiU’s

y employment with the CIU began, Mr. Brown and the CIU’s Seniot Assistant District

hém. At the méeting they said they

1 “stand.” They said there were subjects that were talied about and they wanted to know

'ples discussing politics and using

was nét just discussions of politics

g[l;iy inappropiiate: conversations in

. The CIU’s cufture was toxic,
eit.

nd discriminatory views regarding
f the 'gay and lesbian community,
nt District Attorney James Antwon

about Muslims. Mr. Brown even

mbers of some of these groups need to be killed, and further said the only problem would

loyd frequently disparaged Native

20f7




‘

i _;}\mericans-ﬂtiring coriyersations with me. I found these comments to be part

lama mehi'lbér of sonié of the groups he was referring to, but also becau

deserved tg die, collectively make up a majority of the population we wi

t

referred to Aftican Anjericans as “shit bags” who did “shit bag things.”
|
Additionally, shortly after I began my employment with Responde

-Shanelle Ph!ognix'—Da jels to find out what policies or processes I niceded

EXHIBIT A

jcularly disturbing, not only because
se the very people Mr. Brown said

ere hired to serve. Mr. Brown also

nt, | asked Respondent’s employes

to follow in order to burn sage, or

“studge,” ign my officg. Smudging is a spiritual practice that is part of my réligion and is used to cleanse spaces

and individtﬁals‘. Ms. Phoenix-Daniels asked what I was buiming and guit

.invit__ed her to my ofﬁ'cl and showed her my shell, sage and explained the. Pro

ed if it was Jike buining incehse,

cess. A few days later M3, Phoenix-

Daniels infclmned me that | was given the “ok™ to smudge in my office Without any guidelines to fallow. I

purchased t\;vp air purifiers (one for my office and ofie for the common- dvea that is shared in the CIU) and

eofitinued t6 run them|while also shutting my office door while smudging in an effort to be as respectful as

possible to f;e_ilow employees: However, when | did smudge, 1 was harassed By my fellow employees, Comments

were made tllgat 1 shoulL

be drug-tested because of the sage's aroma, and I was challenged to an “incense war”

|
by Mr. Bmvgm. When gther DA employees came into the CIU both Mr. Brown and Mr. Floyd informed them 1

was smokiné weed (marijuanaj due to the aroma. | felt demeaned and harassed for practicing my religion becausé
i

of the way Iiwas tréated regarding this.

1 also endured

Floyd overheard a telephone conversation and was aware of problems [ was

prescription ‘covered b

if the ,rnedica}tion was f

iscrimination based on my sexual orientation and not

my insurance. Mr. Floyd, who I believe was aware

r AIDS. Mr. Floyd had previously expressed his belie

conforming to sek stereotypes. Mr.,
s having getting a rether expensive
of my sexual orientation, asked me

f'that only homosexuals and people

who have se}(ual relations with monkeys get AIDS. Mr, Brown and UG employee David Kelly also frequently

.l
made negative remarks

about gay people — gay men and transgender pecple

n particular.

N
i
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EXHIBIT A

1 wgs chided for wearing certain clothing and keeping my ﬁngemailp well-manicured: At one point, Mr.

Brown en:?réd my office and was looking at my coin collection, I hay

! .
hornosexua! tone (megning they are from other law enforcement agencies
I

e several coins some that have a

vith a gay pride theme). Mr. Brown

whilg !ookiélg atmy c‘n.ins made the comment “I only put out the ones that are important to me.” I replied, “They

are all important to me.”

Botfr Brown and Floyd consistently barassed me and stated I was being too “particular” regarding finding

a place to live and blamed this on my being Native American. They said | whs being “posh” because I"m Native
] .

American aﬁd had “high class welfare” from the federal government, Speak

the room, Blrgwn said,

ng about me, as if | weren’teven in

“The government just feeds hiin money, and so, hefs established this h"igh_ standard of

living: He comies here (o Wyandotte County, and, boom, (he’s) at the botton) of the barre]l now.” Brown further

safd I get & check “from the government because (I) was fucking born.” M1, Floyd-told me he would “ireat me

like the plg_rtlts” because [ was “noncommittal.” He would also threaten me that he would telf Mark Dupree 1 was

not doing 'm!vj‘cnb so Dupree would fire me. 1 believe that he made all of the:

¢ comments and belittled me about

finding an apartment because of I do not conform ta gender stereotype, my religion and ethnicity.
| .

On sle*_-'erai occasions in or around March and until my termination,

assigtant district attorneys, Candice, Njeri, Tonda, and Darrion, about the dis

my concefns about my

shared my concerns with four UG

crimination 1 was experiencing, and

coworkeis' negatively biased attitude toward the very people the CIU was supposed to

help. These ditorneys advised me | should take my concems to-the Human Resources Department. | was afraid

to do so because, even

out that | made the. complaint, because the unit consisted of only four

retaliation and the possibility of increased hostility towards me. There we

attorneys, K?yla, Eric 4

of these con';fersmions.

nd Daniel, who were aware of these practices as | w

f1 were able to enter a complaint anonymously, my CIU coworkers would easily figure

ployees. 1 was concemned about
E also three other assistant district
H

nesséd themn participating in some.

i -
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I continved to

Respondent’s Human
May 14, 2021, I was ¢

Conrthouse! iy aftémpte

gain entry to the facility, no longer functioned. I then entered the facility thy

through security; Whil

Resource Departiment. However, I was terminated b

2alled into 8 meeting at Mr. Dupree’s office, Upon n

document my concerns while [ worked p the ¢

I waited outside Mr. Dupree’s office, I went to see ¢

to see what|was goin

“war room,;]

foom had n

concerns about the &

" a room just down the hall. This struck me as odd, because in
t been their usual practice,

As tT{e r'neet_in‘J,betwcen Mr, Dupree and me began, he asked me h

on, who advised me that Anton Floyd and Colin Bs

EXHIBIT A

jurage to report thesé concerns to
efore I could do this, On or around
ny arrival at the Wyaﬁc!otte‘ County
d to gdin entry into the parking garage, as I had always done. My badge, which | used to

ough the main doors and proceeded

rie of the assistant district attorneys
own were eating their linch in the

my experience, eating lunch in that

bw 1 'was doing. 1 tried to raise my

Ituie of the Cill.and the discrimination T had exp

fjenced, but, in fewer than fifteen

seconds, Mri Diiprée abruptly ¢ut me short, saying, “So, let me say this: Today's going to be your last day in -

this office.”

CIU, He sai

concerns, M1r. Dupree 4

4

. L ..
| was concerned abguit

decided I needed to ta

District Attorney), agai

Mr. Duprée

|
apain abruptly cutme s

end, but, as

concerns. Again, Mr. [lupree cut me short, saying the meeting was “offici;

indicated that my cont

terinination ¢

M. Dupre

d he was "t

about the r

‘meeting” |

eligious discrimination | had endured. As soon as |

hort. He told me 1 could send him an email. He state

of this megting you're done in this office.” I said | would emai

asted less than five minutes,

rying to figure out on whose part (the lack of c,ofmpai

mueking things worse between my coworkers and m)

ce my concerns and discrimination complaints to M

inued employment in the CIU would slow the ug

e told me that from what he’d been “hearing” there Was a lack of “compatibility” in the

ibility} is.” As I began to raise my

nade a point of saying 1 hid not previously brought my congerns to him. I explained that

jself. T explained further that I had

r. Damon Mitchell {Chief Deputy

n, following what ] u'nderstood to be the chain of command. At that point, 1 began to tell

Said, “my culture, my religion,” he
i, 91 can deal with that on the back
I him, but again, tried to voice my’
ally over at this point.” He further

it's progress toward justice. The

50f7




|
i
H
1
;
i

Pp'oif to firin
: “conipatibigi;ty” in the
policies rcé:arding v
terminate n'!aje because
comp']ailnts :my cowork

down the héii because

CIU. Ner did anyone else. To my understanding, thig

sstigating complaints and regdrding terminating emp

of my race, religion, sex, my not conforming to g
cers made about me due to these things. I feel like

of their involvement with my termination.

Foli?iwing my

I'endured asj; well as the discriminatory comments made against other prote
never reinstated to my position, ‘While meeting with Shakeva Christian,

" advised an investigation would be conducted. A couple days later I rece

informing 'n?e thet the

concemned t_i_x:at it wol

coinplaining
As g

forth he_réin,}

law, Respor.!denl, as an

maintdin a p,
to prevent di

Asa

deposit on my apartme
o
pay, emotiqinal distres

. . x 1 .
Commission deems ap

about was
direct and

I have bee

ace of émployment free of discrimination, yet Respondent faile
scriminatiq

result of §

ermination, | made reports to Human Resources aboy

istrict Attorney’s office wc;u[_d be investigating the ¢
d bie difficult for a fair and objéctive investigation t
investigating itself. _
proximate result of the actions and conduct of the

n subjected 1o race, sex, and religious discrimination

Respondent’s actions, I have suffered loss of incom
ht, a foss of self-esteem, and extreme emotional ang
s damages, punitive damages, attorneys’ fees and

ropriate.

]

L

EXHIBIT A

g‘ me, Mr. Dupree never once asked mé ambdut what he had heard about the Jack of

is ‘& clear violation of Respondent’s
loyees, I believe that he decided to
der stereotypes and because of the
nton Floyd and Colin Brown were
t the discrimination and harassment
sted individuals. Despite this, I was
Human Resources Manager, 1 was
ved an email from Mrs, Christian
omplaints against it. This made me

b take place when the office ! was

above-described Respondgnt as set

1 contravention of state and federal

employer, knew or should have known of its long-standing obligation under the law to

d to take reasonably adequate steps

n. Respondent discriminated against me due to my rdce, sexual orientation, and.religion.

5, Joss of a portion of my security
sish. I am seeking back-pay, front-

costs, and any oOther remedy the

6of7




EXHIBIT A

Immﬁschargaﬁledmm bafh
advisa the ageades if/ chanpe ¢

‘with théim in the promssrng of my bharge in accordance wllh their procedul

& EEQC and the State or local Agancy, rf any 1 it
‘atldress Sr pharne pmber and |will cooperate fully
res.

NOTABY ~ When re

Cessary for STale and Local Agency Requimmanis

| 1sweardr afﬂrm

| dedare under pepalty of § pequ_r'
i

202109 mi!_ .
Data

.. ‘—“'- : g
Clinrping Parly Signafuro

‘the best of my

SIGNATURE OF COI

{ 1 have read the above cha;ge arid that it s lrue fo
edge, lnfarmatlsn. dind befief,

RLAINANT
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EXHIBIT B

208 W, Linwood Blvd.

(

Kansas City, Missour] 64111

EFOL Form 5 {3108} . . . . . . .
CHARGE OF DISCRIMINATION Charge Fléserited To:  Agenéy(ies) Charge Nofs}:
T e T S (] reea  Rovd EEOC 0811512021
~
KANSAS HUMAN R[GHT ] COMMISS!ON ahd EEDC
‘ " Srate criocal Agency, if iy o
Name findicaie Mr, M., Mix) Home Phona (inc). Area Code) Dato of Blirth
A_;_il_'on ,élr_t;le,'BeaI; ¢/o Edelman, Liesen & Myers, L.L.P, (816) 301-4056
Strust Address Chy, State and ZiP Codo ' : )

thad ié-1hef Emﬁloyer. Labnr drgamzauon. Employinent Agency, Apprentihlp Comnittés, or Stata of
D%s:rimlnated Aga']nsl Me o Oth#rs (i more than two, Kst under PARTICULARS ber‘ow) :

Local Goverivrienl Agenicy That | Belléve

Unifled Govemmant o Wyandotte County and Kansas City, KS

2000+

T Phi;ci;..lﬂ;n.’{réé'udq m; Code
(813} 673-8311

sm:Mdmss i

701 N.-7th Silreet

" Cily, Statg and ZIP Tode

Kansas City, KS 66101

"DISCRIMINATION BASED ON (Chech appropriate box(es))

E RACE FD COLOR

D OTHER (Speciy}

[x] oo

- RELIGION E)g NATIGNAL GRIGIN
[E HETALmoN z | AGE [:l DISABILITY D GENETIC INFDRMATION

Edrflest
January 21,

DATE(S) DISCRIMINATION TOOK PLACE

Latest
2021

CONTINUING ACTION

THE PARTICULARSIARE {If sddition

Additional RTsponﬂent:

573-2851.

I, Aaron Circle]

Wyandotte County and

dbove, Respo’ntdents are employers within Title V1I of the Civil Rights Act of

VI,

The specific fac

as follows:

.'pa'parfs

Uad, Bfach oxira Shoalis)):

Bear, bring this Charge of Discrimination against

K ansas City, Kansas, (UG) and Wyandotte Courity [

Wyandotte County District Attorney’s Office, 710 7th St; Kansas

City, KS 66161, (913)

Respondent Unified Government of
District Attorney’s Office (DA) listed
964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000¢ ef seq (“Title

Is that give rise to my claims of race, sex, religion and national origin discrimination are
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I
| anf'a Native
I

ancestors, a'Fd my righ't_

American male, I am also a gay man, Further, ]

to engage in these practices is protected under'the

o
Act of 1978 (AIRFA) 42 U.5.C. § 1996, as amended,

1 started worki

CommuniayE Integrity Unit {CIU), whichi is overseer by Wyandotte County
]

This departr:ﬂent investigates cases of wrongful conviction and law enforce

i

Chief Imges{igato'r pos
law enforéement. Colir

Chief Investigator and

S'hnr't'iy after my employment with the CIU began, Mr. Brown and

Attorriéy Jai'nés.AhtWo

wanted to k ow where

if discussing; those subjects was off Hmits to me. They offered as exam

profanity, w}i_ich 1did 1

Alm

and use of profenity that were at issue.in the department. | keard many hig
which my coworkers said things that were very discriminatery in natu

discriminatory, and hostile for the entirety of my employment with Respond

In pagticular; inll

ng for Respondents on or about January 21, 2021,

tion, for which } was qualified due to my approxim
was my supervisor.

i Floyd, asked mé to have a “sit down” meeting with

] “stand,” Thiey said there were subjects that were tal}

ot object to.

st i'mmedirtcly, within a week, it became apparent to me that jt

estigator Brown often expressed deeply offensive

EXHIBIT B

fj!low the religious practices of my

\mierican Indian Religious Freedom

s an investigator in Respondent’s

District Attorney Mark Dupree, Sr.
mierit misconduct. 1 applied for the

ately eleven years of experience in

Brown, a Caucasian male, with two years of law enfprcement éxperience was the CIU’s

the CIU's Senior Assistant District
theth. At the meeting they said they
ked abotit-and they ‘wanted to know

ples discussing politics and using

was not just discussions of politics
ihly inappropriate. convérsations in,
re, The CIU’s culture was toxic,

ent.

d discriminatory views regarding

minorities; intellecnially and/or physically handicapped people, members of the gay and lesbian community,

ransgender peopie, an

Floyd also frequently expressed deeply offensive and discriminatory views

people receiving welfare and unemployment, Assis

nt District Attorney James Antwon

about Muslims. Mr. Brown even

went so far as to say members of some of these groups need to be killed, and further said the only problem would

be where “to

put all the ovens at to burn the bodies.” Further, Brown and R

loyd frequently disparaged Nativeé

20f7




Americans <iil-,ir_ing cony
lama m‘erillber of son
deserved to; die, callec
referred to Jl\frican Am)

Additionally, s
Shanelle l?l'ikoe'nix-Dan
“smoudge,” i:n my office
anid indivi'dlillals. Ms. P
invited her o ray office
Daniels informed nié

' purchased o aif pur

continued toirin them
possible to f?ilbw empl
were made tlilxat I shoul
by M. Brown, When g

was smoking weed (ina

I
of the way [‘lwas treat

I aIscI)'f_:ndurgd

Floyd overheard a telephone conversation and was aware of problems. [ wa
r |

prescription [covered by

hortly after | began tity employment with Responde

.

cj
iscrimination based on my sexual orientation and not

ersations with me. ] found these comments to be part

ericdns as “shit bags” whio did “shit bag things.”

els to find out what policies or processes | needed

. Smudging i5 a spiritual practice that is part of my e

and showed her my shell, sage and explained the pro
hat I was given the “ok™ to smudge in my office ¥
fiers (one for my office and one for the common g
wlhile also shutting my office door while smudging
oyees. However, when 1 did smudge, T was harassed b

d be drug-tested because of the sage’s aroma, and [ ¥

rijuana) due to the aroma. I felt demeaned and harasse

regarding this.

r my insurance, Mr, Floyd, who | believe was aware

EXHIBIT B

cularly disturbing, not only because
ne of the groups he was reféfring to, but also becauge the very people Mr. Brown Said

‘tively male up a majority of the population we were hired to serve. Mr. Brown also

nt, I asked Respondent’s employee

16 follow in order to burn sage, or

ligion and is used to cleanse spaces

hoenix-Daniels asked what | was burning and inquired if it was like burning incense. |
tess. A few days later Ms. Phoenix-
vithout any guidelines to follow. I

vea that is shared in the CIU) and

"in an effort to be as respectful as
y my fellow employees. Comments

vas-challenged to an “incense war”

ther DA employees came into the CIU both Mr. Brown and Mr. Floyd informed them [

i for practicing my religion because

conforming to sex stereotypés. Mr.
5 having getting a rathier expensive

pf my sexual orientation, asked me

ifthe medic:%tioh was f(lr AIDS. Mr. Floyd had previously expressed his belief that only homosexuals and people

! +
who have sexual relatic

made negative remarks

yns with monkeys get AIDS. Mr, Brown and UG emj

about gay people ~ gay tmen and transgender people

bloyee David Kelly aiso frequently

kn particuler.
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1 was chided f&

3
Brown entered my o
homosexual tone (mnes

while looking at fiiy ¢d

are all impolrtant to me.

Both Brown an

a place to live and blan

American and had “hig
the room, B'fow'n said,]
]

living. He comes here {

said.) geta ':‘heck *fror

EXHIBIT B

r wearing certain clothing and keeping my fingernails wellmanicured. At one point, Mr.
fice and was looking at my coin collection, § have several coins some that have a
ning they are from other law enforcement agéncies with a gay pride theme). Mr. Brown
ins made the comment “1 ony put out the ones that afe important to me.” [ replied, “They

n

d Floyd consistently harassed me and stated [ was being too “particular” regarding finding.

ned this o rmy being Native American. They said I wps being “posh” because I’m Native
h class welfare" from the federal government. Speaking about me, as if I weren’t even in
“The government just feeds him money, and so, he's gstabfished this high standard of
o Wyandotte County, and, boom, (he’s) at the bottom of the barrel now.” Brown further

n the government bicause (1) was fucking born.” M. Floyd told e he wouid “treat me

like the plants” becaus

finding an apartment b

On seéveral occa

asgistant disi
my co_m_:er‘mf about fy
help. These -lat_tomeys ]

to do so hecause, even

out that I m
retaliation apd the pos
attorneys, K

ersations.

¥

of these cony

I

not doing my job so Di

tiét attorne

ade the <

ayla, Eric and Daniel, who were aware of these practices as | wi

] was “noncommittal.” He would afso threatén rrie that he would tell Maik Dupree I was

pree would fire me. I believe that he made all of these comments and belittled me about

ecause of 1 do not conform to gender stergotype, my seligion and ethnicity.

isions in or around March and until my termination, | shared my concerns with four UG
vs, Candice, Njeri, Tonda, and Darrion, about the disgrimination I was experiencing, and
coworkefs® negatively biased dttitude toward the very people the CIU was supposed to
dvised me | should take my concerns to the Human Resources Departfngnt. I was aftaid
f I were able to enter a complaint anonymously, my CIU coworkers would easily figure.
ymplaint, because the unit consistéd of only four employees. 1 was concerned about
e also three other assistant district

sibility of increased hostility towards me. There wey

tnesséd them participating in some
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1 caritinued to

EXHIBIT B

document my concerns while 1 worked up the courage to report these concerns to

Respondent’s Hurnan Resource Department. However, 1 was terminated before 1 could de this, On or afoting

l . . :
May 14, 2021, | was called into 2 meeting at Mr. Dupree’s office. Upon myy amival at the. Wyandotte County

Courthouse! 1 attempted to gain entry into the parking garage, as I had aliva

s dene. My badge, which 1 used to

gain entry to the facility, no longer functioned. I then entered the facility through the main doors and proceeded

through security. While | waited outside Mr. Dupree's office, | went to see

to see what|was going

“war ropm,” a room just down the hall, This struck me as odd, because in

ne of the assistant district attorneys

on, who advised me that Anton Floyd and Colin Brown were eating their linch in the

room had nTt been their usual practice:

- As the meeting

'

coricerns about the ¢ty

between Mr, Dupree and me began, he asked me h

Ty experience, eating lunch in that

yw 1 was doing. I tried to raise my

ture of the CIU and the discrimination I had expefienced, but, in fewer than fifteen

seconds, Mt Dupree abruptly cut me. sﬁort, saying, “So, let me say this: Today's going 1o be your last day in

this office.”|Mr. Dupree told me that from what he’d been “hearing” there

as a Jack of “compatibility” in the

CiU. He sai:f he was “Crying to figure out on whose part (the lack of compaLib_i]ity) is.” As [ began to raise my

conceens, Mr. Dispree made a point of saying I had not previously brought my concerns to him. | explained that

|"was concetned sbout|making things worse betweén my coworkers and myself. | explained further that ] had'

1

decided | ndeded to take my concerns and discrimination complaints to Mr. Damon Mitchell (Chief Deputy

District Attorney), again, following what 1 understood to be the chain of comtmand. At that point, 1 began to tell

Mr. Dupree dbout the

ligious discrimination 1 had endured. As soon as 1 said, “my culture, my religion,” he

again abruplLy cut me stoﬁ. He told me  could sénd him an email. He stated, *1 can deal with that on the back

end, but, as of this mee

concerns, Again, Mr, Dupree cut me short, saying the meeting was “offici

ting you're done in this office.” I said 1 would email him, but again, tried to voice my

ally over at this point.” He further

indicated that my conginued emnployment in the CIU would slow the unit’s progress toward justice. The

termination {meeting” |

asted less than five minutes,

50f7




Priot to firing
“cctnpatibillit_){" inthe
policies réglﬁrc_ling inve
ferminate me because
complaints ;;1y cowork
down the haill because

Fnilc:awing myt
I endured as ‘well as th

_never refnst'a;ted to my

CIU. Nor did anyone else. To my understanding, this

stigating complaints and regarding terminating emp,

pf their involvement with my termination.

position. While meeting with Shakeva Cliristian,

. adviséd an nvés'tigaﬁTn would be conducted. A couple days later [ réce

of my race, religion, sex, my not conforming to gen

ers made about me due to these things, ! feel like A

ermination, ] made reports to Human Resources abou

e discriminatory comiments made against other protec

EXHIBIT B.

me, Mr, Dupree never once asked me about what he hdd heard about the lack of

is a clear violation of Respondent’s
loyees. | believe that he decided to
der stereotypes and because of the

nton Floyd and Colin Brown were

t the discrimination and harassment
ted individuals. Despite this, I was
Humar Resources Manager, | was

véd an.email from Mrs, Christian

inférming nllé that the District Attornéy’s office would be investigating the complaints against it. This made-me

conéerned t

complaining about was investigating itseif.
p § gating

at it would be difficult for a fair and objective investigation to take place when the office 1 was

As d direct and| proximate result of the actions and conduct of the above:described Respondent as set

forth herein,|| have bee

law, Respondent, as an

suhjected to race, sex, and religious discrimination

employer, knew or should have known of ts long-s

confravention of state and federal

anding obligation undet the law to

maintain a place of employment free of discrimination, yet Respondent fai led to take reasonably adequate steps

to prevent di’gcriminatic n. Respondent discriminated against me due to my “Tei sexual orientation, and religion.

As afesult of Respondent’s actions, [ have suffered loss of incom

%
deposit on my apartme

pay, emotiopal distres

s damages, punitive damages, attorneys’ fees and

Commission deems appropriate.

e, loss of a portion of my security.

nt, a [oss of self-esteem, and extreme emotional angish. 1 am seeking back-pay, front-

costs, end any other remedy the
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EXHIBIT B

I'want this charge fied with both]
advise the agencies if  change

e EEQC and the Stata or lecal Agency, Heny. ) wi
address ar phang number and | will cooperate fully

with thef in thie processing of my Eharge In accordarica with helr procedures.

“NOTARY - When et

Lassary fir Sfdte and I.o_chr:a pancy Regiirements

1 daclare ander penally of parjun

a’lﬁa’t’ 109 4
Data

at the-aptve [s trigf and correct.

A

-

Charging Party Signature

{ swear or affim th
the best af my kn

SIGNATURE CF GO

1 | have read the abové charge arid that i & true lo
edgé, Information, and-belied,

(PLAINANT
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U.S. Depar

EXHIBIT C

ent of Justice

Civil R:ghl]s Division
NOTICE OF RIGHT T TO SUE W‘ITHIN S0DAYS

Mr. Aaron Circle Bear

¢/o Sarah Liesexi}, Esquire;

150 M Street,
Washington, |
March 29,

Law Offices of Edelman, [Liesen & Myers

208 W. Linwood
Kansas City, MO 64111

Re: --I_?_,-EO_CICh_a;rge Again

No. 563202102790

Dear Mr. Circle/Bear:

Kareri Ferguson

E.
» EMP, 4CON, Room 9.514
(20530

2022

st Unified Gov't of Wyandotte County & Kangas City, Kansas, et al.

Becausc youifiled the sbove charge with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, and

more than 180 days have

and no suit based thereon

elapsed since the date the Commission assumed jurisdiction over the charge,
has been filed by this Department, and becausg you through your attoroey

have spes;lﬁcailg/ requested this Notice, you are hereby notified that you have the right to institute a
civil action und Jr Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended,

againist the above-named

respendent.

42 U.S.C. 2000¢, et 5eq.,

ifyou choose to commience a civil action, such suit must be filed in the appropriate Court withii

90 days of your feceipt o

this Notice.

The investigative file pertaining to your case is located in the EEOC Kansas City Area Office,
Kansas City, K

This Notice should not be taken to mean that the Department of Justice has made a judgment as to
whether or not your case is meritorious.

Sincerely,
Kristen Clarke
Assistant Attorney General
Civil Rights Division

cc: Kansas City |Area Office, EEOC
Unified Gov't cl:f- Wyandotte County & Kansas City, Kansas, et al.

3

by /s Karen L. Ferguson
Karen L. Ferguson

Supervisory Civil Rights Analyst

Employment Litigation Section




; EXHIBIT D
i .

U.S. Department of Justice

Civil Rights Division

NOTICE OFRIGHT TO SUE WITHIN 90 DAYS

150 M Streel, N.E. . '

Karen Ferguson , EMP, 4CON, Room 5514
' Washington, DC 20530

March 29; 2022

Mr. Aaron Cirgle Bear

¢/o Sarah Liesen, Esquire

Law Offices of Edelman, Liesen & Myers

208 W. Linwood Bivd.

Kansas City, MO 6411
i

|
Re: EECC anrge Against Unified Gov't of Wyandotte County & Kansas City, KS, et al.
No. 563202102791

Dear Mr. Circle Bear:

Because you filed the above charge with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, and
more than lsoldays hav%e elapsed since the date the Commission assurged jurisdiction over the charge,
and no suit based thereon has been filed by this Department, and because you through your attorney
have specifically reques{;d this Notice, you are hereby notified that you have the right to institute a
civil action undler Title XH of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 2000e, et seq.,
against the above-name respondent.

If you chools.'e to commence a civil action, such suit must be filed in|the appropriate Court within
90 days of your receipt of this Notice.

The investigative file pertaining to your case is located in the EEO( Kansas City Area Office,
Kansas City, KS.
This N(.vtic:n.aI should not be taken to mean that the Department of Justice has made 3 judgment as to
whether or not'your case is meritorious.

Sincerely,
Kristen Clarke

Assistant Attomey General
Civil Rights Division

by  /s/Karen L, Ferguson

: Karen L. Fergusbu
Supervisory Civil R.igllnts Analyst
. Employment Litigation Section

¢c: Kansas City Area Otfice, EEOC
Unified Govit of Wyandotte County & Kansas City, KS, et al,




